	
	
	



Questions and Answers
Depot Charging and Hydrogen Refueling Infrastructure for Medium-and Heavy-Duty On-Road Zero-Emission Vehicles
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The following answers are based on California Energy Commission (CEC) staff’s interpretation of the questions received. It is the Applicant’s responsibility to review the solicitation and to determine whether their proposed project is eligible for funding by reviewing the Eligibility Requirements within the solicitation. The CEC cannot give advice as to whether a particular project is eligible for funding, because not all proposal details are known.

Unless indicated otherwise, all section numbers identified are from the solicitation manual (for example, “Section II.B.” refers to Section II.B. of the solicitation manual) of Addendum 4.

Eligibility Requirements/Project Requirements
 
Q1.	We are a very large public transit agency.  Our existing hydrogen refueling infrastructure is located within our bus facilities as we have a large and growing fleet of fuel cell electric buses that utilize this infrastructure daily. Would we be eligible to apply for these funds even though our project would be located within our bus facility and just serve ourselves?
 
A1.	No. If a public transit agency proposes to serve only its own fleet and not make at least 25% of the proposed infrastructure available as Public Access during normal operating hours, then the proposed project would be considered not meeting the project requirements of the solicitation and deemed ineligible.

Q2. 	Does the purchase order need to be for all zero-emission vehicles (ZEVs) at once? If we were able to provide a purchase order for the first one or two vehicles, would this be enough?
 
A2. 	If proposing a Private Access or Shared Access infrastructure project, the fleet(s) that is being supported must commit to supporting: 
· At least two MDHD EVs per Level 2 charging port proposed for CEC funding. 
· At least three MDHD EVs per DC fast charging port proposed for CEC funding. 
· At least 15 MDHD FCEVs per hydrogen refueling position proposed for CEC funding. 

To ensure that the infrastructure funded under this solicitation will be utilized, Applicants of Private or Shared Access infrastructure projects must submit a Letter(s) of Intent to Place a Purchase Order (Attachment 14) per fleet with their application, with the exception of applicants using existing vehicles. The letter(s) should reflect plans to place a purchase order within three months of grant agreement execution. The letter must specify the type(s) and number(s) of ZEVs to be procured and justify the need for the proposed infrastructure. If an Applicant cannot place a purchase order within three (3) months of agreement execution, the CEC reserves the right, in addition to any other rights it has, to cancel the award and offer funding to the next highest scored eligible Applicant on the NOPA list. 

Q3. 	Is there a minimum local storage requirement for hydrogen stations?
 
A3. 	No, there is no minimum local storage requirement for hydrogen stations. Applicants must justify the size of equipment installed for the proposed infrastructure.

Q4. 	Is there a minimum dispensing rate requirement (kg/min) for hydrogen fuel dispensers?

A4. 	Applicants must ensure that their proposed hydrogen refueling stations conform to industry accepted standards. Please refer to Section II.D., Minimum Technical Requirements for Hydrogen Refueling Stations. 

Q5. 	Could a single storage depot supply more than one dispensing position to qualify? For example, would a single storage tank and supporting equipment connected to two or more dispensers work?

A5. 	There is no limit to the storage capacity of a station as long as the storage is sufficient and justified for the infrastructure to support the proposed number of vehicles. 
 
Q6. 	Is it correct that for all projects, at least 50% of the locations in the application must directly benefit or serve residents of disadvantaged and low-income communities and low-income Californians, in accordance with the map provided at Priority Populations — California Climate Investments https://www.caclimateinvestments.ca.gov/priority-populations?  

A6. 	Yes, that is correct. Please see Attachment 17, Evaluation Criteria for Priority Populations for detailed steps to determine whether your proposed project provides direct, meaningful and assured benefits to priority populations.

Q7. 	Considering that Addendum 3 has a maximum award of $4 million and maximum of $2 million per hydrogen refueling position, does this mean that we could apply for two hydrogen refueling positions under one application? If so, then would that mean that at least 30 medium-and heavy-duty (MDHD) fuel cell electric vehicles (FCEVs) are required for two hydrogen refueling positions? Could the two hydrogen refueling positions be in two different locations with 15 MDHD FCEVs serving each position (splitting the 30 MDHD FCEVs into two different locations)?

A7. 	Please refer to Addendum 4, which has a maximum award amount of $8 million per application. 

Assuming that an Applicant requests $2 million per hydrogen refueling position, the maximum award amount of $8 million would allow at least four hydrogen refueling positions under one application. Applicants may propose more hydrogen refueling positions if the Applicant is requesting less funding per refueling position as long as the application does not request more than $8 million of CEC funding. 

Applicants are required to have at least 15 MDHD FCEVs per hydrogen refueling position supported by the proposed infrastructure if proposing a Private Access or Shared Access infrastructure project. If an Applicant is proposing to install two hydrogen refueling positions, then the Applicant would need to show that at least 30 MDHD FCEVs will be supported by the proposed infrastructure. The two hydrogen refueling positions may be in two different locations with 15 MDHD FCEVs serving each position, as long as infrastructure at each proposed location meets all the applicable requirements under the solicitation.

Q8. 	Addendum 3 shares that if we are proposing a Shared Access infrastructure project, we must demonstrate that at least two fleets are being supported by the project. Does this mean that the required number of MDHD FCEVs increases by double, at least 30 MDHD FCEVs per every hydrogen fueling position, or would it be at least two fleets committed in the project with at least 15 MDHD FCEVs per every hydrogen fueling position?

A8. 	The vehicle deployment requirements in the solicitation apply to the number of charging ports/hydrogen refueling positions proposed for CEC funding, not to the number of fleets being supported by the proposed project. For the scenario in this question, the requirements would be that at least two fleets committed in the Shared Access project with at least 15 MDHD FCEVs per hydrogen fueling position proposed cumulatively.

Q9. 	For Public Access infrastructure projects, there is no requirement to meet for the vehicle deployment; however, the number we propose could determine the score on the degree. What is the ideal number that is considered a maximum vehicle deployment for a high score?

A9. 	The solicitation does not set an “ideal” or maximum number of vehicles for Public Access projects. Public Access infrastructure projects proposed for CEC funding are not required to meet the vehicle deployment commitment outlined in the solicitation manual; instead, proposals will be scored on how well the proposed project maximizes zero-emission vehicle deployment and market growth. All applications, regardless of access-type, must demonstrate how the proposed project will maximize zero-emission vehicle deployment, including descriptions of fleet commitments and strategies the Applicant will take to maximize market growth. Refer to Section II.B.3., Vehicle Deployment Requirements. The CEC Evaluation Committee will assess this under the evaluation criteria, Section IV.E., Scoring Criteria, including the degree to which the infrastructure to be deployed is appropriate for the proposed project’s expected vehicle population and whether the proposed plan maximizes vehicle deployment. Since scoring depends on the full set of site, equipment, and market details presented in an application package, we cannot advise on a specific number outside the context of a complete proposal.  

Q10. 	The proposed site(s) for the charging infrastructure are wastewater treatment facilities. These facilities are classified as critical infrastructure by Homeland Security due to their significance in public health and national security. As a result, public access to these sites is not permissible. Given these circumstances, would the CEC consider granting an exemption to the 25% public access requirement for this scenario? 

A10. 	There is no exemption to the 25% public access requirement. For infrastructure projects supporting the fleets of California public entities, Applicants must propose infrastructure with at least 25% of the charging ports/hydrogen fueling positions available as Public Access during normal operating hours. The infrastructure does not need to be located at the same address as long as the infrastructure at each location meets all applicable requirements in the solicitation.
		
Q11. 	Regarding the Infrastructure Accessibility Requirements for infrastructure projects supporting the fleets of California public entities, is this stipulation non-negotiable for municipal fleets?

A11. 	The infrastructure accessibility requirements are not negotiable for any Applicants.

Q12. 	Regarding the Infrastructure Accessibility Requirements for infrastructure projects supporting the fleets of California public entities, does this stipulation have a minimum number of chargers that must be installed to trigger the 25% for municipal fleets, or does it apply to any number of chargers installed (as long as the minimum grant is $2 million)?

A12. 	There is no minimum number of chargers to trigger the 25% requirements. These requirements apply to any infrastructure projects supporting the fleets of California public entities.

Q13. 	Regarding the Infrastructure Accessibility Requirements for infrastructure projects supporting the fleets of California public entities, does this stipulation include a municipality placing chargers in service for fleet vehicles, within a city lot that is not accessible to the public for insurance/safety reasons, and that has confirmed plans to use the chargers at capacity?

A13. 	For infrastructure projects supporting the fleets of California public entities, applicants must propose infrastructure with at least 25% of the charging ports/hydrogen fueling positions available as Public Access during normal operating hours. The infrastructure does not need to be located at the same address as long as the infrastructure at each location meets all applicable requirements in the solicitation. Applicants are encouraged to plan the size of infrastructure that accommodates their fleets with at least 25% of the infrastructure accessible to the public.

Q14. 	Does the 25% public access during normal working hours allow for the public to pay for the charger, or does it have to be free to them?

A14. 	Applicants can establish a fee/payment structure to charge users.

Q15. 	Do the chargers need to be made 25% accessible to all types of vehicles, or only MDHD (classes 3 - 8) vehicles?  

A15. 	The infrastructure installed using the CEC funding under this solicitation must be for MDHD ZEVs (classes 3-8). 

Q16. 	Can the 25% of chargers installed for public access still be 60kW minimum?  

A16. 	Please refer to Addendum 4, which requires each charging port to be capable of at least Level 2 charging if the EV charging station will be Private or Shared Access and not 100% Public Access. 

Q17. 	Could 25% of the chargers be placed at a different, publicly accessible site, and the remaining 75% behind gates reserved for City fleets?

A17. 	Yes, as long as the infrastructure at each location meets all applicable requirements in the solicitation.

Q18. 	Can this grant be stacked with EnergIIZE grants?

A18. 	No. EnergIIZE funding cannot be stacked with this grant. 

Q19. 	Is this solicitation regionally bound/ targeted or is it open to any location in California?

A19. 	No. This solicitation is not regionally bound; the solicitation is open to all locations in California.

Q20. 	Is there a geographic focus on this solicitation, e.g. Long Beach?

A20. 	No. This solicitation is not geographically focused. 

Q21. 	Can onsite hydrogen production be included in proposed projects?

A21. 	Renewable hydrogen production equipment is not eligible for CEC reimbursement but may be included as an Applicant’s match share.

Q22. 	Can public agencies apply to this solicitation for a private access station given that the station is dedicated to a single fleet?

A22. 	Public agencies can apply to this solicitation; however, for infrastructure projects supporting the fleets of California public entities, Applicants must propose infrastructure with at least 25% of the charging ports/hydrogen refueling positions available as Public Access during normal operating hours. The remaining infrastructure may be Public, Shared, or Private Access.

Q23. 	Can a Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV)  (a separate legal entity created by a company or investor) apply to this solicitation? 

A23. 	The solicitation does not preclude an entity that is developed by a group of investors and developers as long as the entity meets all the eligibility requirements and is established before the deadline to submit applications. 

Q24. 	Can a city apply to this solicitation?

A24. 	A city is an eligible entity to apply as long as the proposed project is an eligible project under this solicitation. Please refer to Section II. Eligibility Requirements of the solicitation.

Q25. 	The solicitation manual requires that chargers have network connectivity through either Wi-Fi or ethernet, but will network connectivity through cellular also be allowed?

A25. 	No. The solicitation requires the charging ports to have network connectivity with one of “IEEE 802.11n for high-bandwidth wireless networking” or “IEEE 802.3 for Ethernet for local- or wide-area network applications.” These two standards are not for cellular technologies.

Q26. 	Other than the disadvantaged community/low-income community eligibility, is there any priority scoring awarded to specific geographic areas in California?

A26. 	No, this solicitation does not prioritize any specific geographic areas in California.

Q27. 	For safety and security, our transit fleet fueling stations are not open to the public. Curious to know how other transit agencies have managed the 25% public access requirement?

A27. 	For infrastructure projects supporting the fleets of California public entities, applicants must propose infrastructure with at least 25% of the charging ports/hydrogen fueling positions available as Public Access during normal operating hours. The infrastructure does not need to be located at the same address as long as the infrastructure at each location meets all applicable requirements in the solicitation.

Q28. 	Will there be an approved equal for the requirement that chargers be compliant with IPv6?

A28. 	No, there is no approved equal for this requirement.

Q29. 	The solicitation manual requires that at least 50% of the locations in an application must directly benefit or serve residents of disadvantaged and low-income communities. Does this mean that these locations must be within disadvantaged and/or low-income communities, or simply benefit/serve these communities?

A29. 	The project locations do not necessarily need to be within disadvantaged and/or low-income communities to directly benefit or serve residents of those communities. Please see Attachment 17, Evaluation Criteria for Priority Populations for detailed steps to determine whether your proposed project provides direct, meaningful and assured benefits to priority populations.

Q30. 	Does this program follow the same rules as EnergIIZE where the infrastructure has to be in the EnergIIZE catalog, but if it isn't in the catalog but still follows all those guidelines the CEC will allow that on a case-by-case basis?  

A30. 	The charging station equipment funded under this solicitation must conform to equipment detailed in the EnergIIZE Eligible Electric Technology Catalog which can be found at https://www.energiize.org/infrastructure?section=infrastructure.more-details.technology 

Q31.	Will the solicitation fund a planning process only (no construction) for a publicly available hydrogen fueling station?

A31. 	No. The Section II.B., Project Requirements states, “All proposed projects must include the installation of new electric vehicle (EV) charging or hydrogen refueling infrastructure for MDHD on-road ZEVs.” 

Eligible Project Costs/Match Share Requirements

Q32.	Could static wireless charging infrastructure for MDHD vehicles be considered eligible project costs under this solicitation?
 
A32.	Yes, costs of static wireless charging infrastructure for MDHD ZEVs could be considered eligible project costs if the charging infrastructure can meet the Infrastructure Development Requirements (Section II.B.4) and the Minimum Technical Requirements for Electric Vehicle Charging Stations (Section II.C).

Q33. 	Will any pre-award costs be reimbursed?

A33. 	No. All eligible costs, CEC-reimbursable and match, must be incurred after agreement execution to be considered as allowable under an agreement. 

Q34. 	Is striping and paving of charging station area an allowable cost? The proposed area would be repurposed for charging station locations.

A34. 	Yes, installation costs are part of eligible project costs for electric vehicle charging infrastructure. 

Q35. 	Is onsite green hydrogen production equipment eligible for reimbursement using natural gas?

A35. 	Renewable hydrogen production equipment is not eligible for CEC reimbursement but may be included as an Applicant’s match share. However, please refer to the Renewable Hydrogen Requirements in Section II. D. of the solicitation for the definitions and pathways for renewable hydrogen.

Q36. 	Can eligible stackable grants count towards a project’s match share requirements?

A36. 	Yes, eligible stackable grants can be allowed for match share as long as they are used for eligible project costs (Section II.E.). Please also refer to Section II.F. Match Funding Requirements.

Minimum and Maximum Award Amounts

Q37. 	Is there any flexibility on minimum request amount of $2 million?

A37. 	No. 

Q38.	Can you please clarify the Maximum Award by Charging Port/Hydrogen Refueling position table? Are those funding levels per EV port/H2 refueling position intended to cover just the cost of the charging/hydrogen station itself (hardware) or also the associated eligible costs of installation and other eligible costs (i.e., solar/storage, transformers, installation costs, commissioning, etc.) found within the “Eligible Project Costs” section in the solicitation? 

A38.	Please refer to Addendum 4, which no longer has the table for maximum award amounts per charging port/hydrogen refueling position. 

Accordingly, the maximum award amount for the project applies to all eligible reimbursable costs. Project costs may cover both the cost of the hardware and the associated costs of installation, commissioning, and solar/storage. 

Q39.	If an Applicant has a project that will install 10 chargers between 150-749 kW per port ($250,000 max per port award), the total per port funding will be $2.5 million. Does that mean that on-site solar/storage equipment costs cannot be more than $1.25 million (50%) of the per port award? And is the $1.25 million in addition to the $2.5 million, and not part of the $2.5 million, or does the solar/storage funding need to pull from the per port funding maximums?

A39.	The solicitation now has Addendum 4 and it no longer has the table for maximum award amounts per charging port/hydrogen refueling position. 

Nevertheless, in this example, it is correct that the on-site solar/storage equipment costs cannot exceed $1.25 million, 50% of the award amount for the chargers. This amount would be in addition to $2.5 million for the chargers. Please note that the maximum award amount per application is $8 million. For example, if an Applicant requested $6 million for chargers, even though 50% of the CEC grant funds for the chargers would be $3 million, the Applicant would only be eligible for $8 million, the maximum award amount. 

Q40.	How does this solicitation assess the charging port capacity? In the instance where a 360 kW Power Cabinet supports three charging ports, charging capacity varies based on how many port are active simultaneously, 360 kW if only one port is active, 180 kW two ports are simultaneously active and 90 kW when three ports are simultaneously active. Is the maximum, average, minimum, or other factor considered for the amount of eligible funding available?

A40.	The answer depends on how many ports an Applicant claims when calculating the CEC funds per port and per kW. Using the example provided in the question, if an Applicant claims one charging port, then the Applicant should use 360 kW for that power cabinet for calculating CEC dollar per kW. If an Applicant claims three charging ports for the power cabinet, then the Applicant should use 90 kW for calculating CEC dollar per kW.

Q41.	As written, this solicitation appears to encourage eliminating a charging port if the minimum simultaneous delivery is used as an applicant could receive $225,000 for a three port configuration ($75,000 * 3) and $500,000 ($250,000 * 2) for a two port configuration with the same power cabinet. Is the goal of the CEC to have higher power ratings for all applications as opposed to more charging ports? This seems like an odd incentive as it is cheaper to have a two port configuration than a three port configuration, but it is rewarded with more eligible dollars.

A41.	The CEC does not have a preference for higher power ratings over the number of charging ports. 

The solicitation now has Addendum 4, which no longer sets the maximum award amount per charging port. Projects will be evaluated on the degree to which the proposed infrastructure demonstrates a highly cost-effective use of CEC funds, which a low cost per charging port or refueling position relative to the power level or refueling capacity. Projects will be evaluated on both the dollar-per-port or refueling position and the dollar-per kW or kg. Please see Section I.E. How Award is Determined and Section I.G. Minimum and Maximum Award Amounts.

Administrative Questions

Q42. 	Everything that was discussed at the pre-application workshop can be found in the manual too, right?

A42. 	The materials covered in the pre-application workshop slides were based on the Addendum 3 solicitation manual. The solicitation now has Addendum 4. The Addendum 4 Cover Letter lists all the changes that were made to the Addendum 3.  
 
Questions Received Before Addendum 3 (issued August 13, 2025)

A43.	Under Category B, applicants are required to convert two or more eligible entity fleets. Can you confirm whether both fleets may be of the same type? For example, would it be permissible to convert two private entities?
 
A43. 	This question is no longer applicable as of Addendum 3.
 
Q44. 	Would a school district qualify as a special district and be able to apply under Category A? Alternatively, if the district must apply under Category B, can you please clarify if we would need a partner entity to apply under Category B?
 
A44. 	This question is no longer applicable as of Addendum 3.

Q45. 	If a municipal transportation agency is considering submitting an application under Category B, the agency must install infrastructure that can be used by at least another entity, is that correct?  The agency would need to partner with another entity? The agency currently provides paratransit services by contracting with a paratransit broker who contracts with van and taxi companies to provide paratransit services. If we provided infrastructure that could be used by the van & taxi companies that provide paratransit services, would that satisfy the requirement?
 
A45. 	This question is no longer applicable as of Addendum 3. Categories have been removed from the solicitation. 
 
Q46.	Are transit agencies eligible for funding under Category A?
 
A46. 	This question is no longer applicable as of Addendum 3. Categories have been removed from the solicitation.

Q47. 	Is the Commission considering any changes to the eligibility requirements? 
 
A47. 	Please refer to Addendum 4 for the most up to date eligibility requirements.
 
Q48. 	Is the CEC open to receiving feedback from industry stakeholders while the solicitation is paused? 
 
A48. 	The CEC did not solicit any feedback from industry stakeholders while the solicitation was on pause. 
 
Q49.	On page 30 of the solicitation manual, what is CEC’s definition of “make-ready equipment”?
 
A49. 	“Make-ready equipment” is defined in the solicitation as of Addendum 3. Make-ready equipment includes installation of wiring, conduit, etc. for a charging or refueling site without installing the actual charging system or dispensing platform.
 
Q50	Is there a minimum award size? 
 
A50 	The minimum award amount is $2 million.
 
Q51. 	The solicitation manual states that applicants must install infrastructure for fleets owned and operated by eligible entities within California. Are applicants required to have these fleets signed on and committed at the time of application submission?
 
A51. 	Applications must propose projects that deploy infrastructure within California to support vehicles that operate in the state at least 51% of the time. Please refer to Section II.B.3., Vehicle Deployment Requirements to determine the level of fleet commitment needed, based on the Access-type of the proposed project. 
 
Q52.	What is the CEC’s definition of a Class 2b ZEV? According to the California Air Resources Board website, Ford F150 Lightning is listed as a Class2b vehicle, and most customarily consider these light-duty vehicles. Can you please clarify if the F150 Lightning counts as a Class 2b MD vehicle, and if so, what is the gross vehicle weight rating (GVWR) that can be applied to assess other MD vehicles? Ford F150 lightning is usually GVWR 8,850-10,000 lbs.
 
A52. 	This question is no longer applicable as of Addendum 3. Class 2b vehicles are not eligible under this solicitation. Please see Section II.B.1., Eligible Projects.
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